
FILED 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA 

ALEXANDRIA DIVISION 

) 
KOMIPHARM INTERNATIONAL CO., ) 

LTD., ) 

1 Ra-107, Sihwa Industrial Complex ) 

Jeongwang-dong, Siheung-si ) 

Gyeonggi-do, 429-450 Korea ) 

) CIVIL ACTION NO. \'.CRQJt 
Plaintiff, ) 

) 
vs. ) 

) 
HON. DAVID J. KAPPOS, ) 

In His Official Capacity as Director of the ) 

United States Patent and Trademark Office, ) 

Office of the General Counsel ) 

United States Patent and Trademark Office ) 

Madison Building East, Room 10B20 ) 

600 Dulany Street ) 

Alexandria, VA 22314 ) 

) 
Defendant. ) 

COMPLAINT 

Plaintiff Komipharm International Co., Ltd., by and through its undersigned counsel, 

hereby complains as follows: 

Nature of the Action 

1. This is an action for judicial review, under the Administrative Procedures Act, 

5 U.S.C. § 701 et seq. ("APA"), of a final agency decision of the United States Patent and 

Trademark Office ("PTO") concluding that Komipharm International Co., Ltd. ("Komipharm") is 

not the owner of the entire right, title, and interest in U.S. Patent Application Serial No. 
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10/962,357 (the '"357 Application"), despite a clear, unequivocal, and valid U.S. assignment of 

the entire right, title, and interest in the '357 Application by all possible inventors to Komipharm. 

2. Komipharm seeks a ruling that the PTO's decision was arbitrary, capricious, an 

abuse of discretion, or otherwise contrary to law and in excess of statutory authority, all in 

violation of 5 U.S.C. § 706(2). 

3. In addition, Komipharm seeks a declaratory judgment that certain assignment 

documents are valid and that, as a result, Komipharm is the owner of the entire right, title, and 

interest in the '357 Application. 

4. Finally, Komipharm seeks immediate emergency, preliminary relief pursuant to 

5 U.S.C. § 705, ordering the PTO to suspend prosecution of the '357 Application until this Court 

rules in this matter. 

The Parties 

5. Plaintiff Komipharm is a Korean corporation with its principle place of business 

located at 1 Ra-107, Sihwa Industrial Complex, Jeongwang-dong, Siheung-si, Gyeonggi-do, 429-450 

Korea. 

6. Defendant David J. Kappos is the Under Secretary of Commerce for Intellectual 

Property and Director of the United States Patent and Trademark Office, a federal agency within 

the United States Department of Commerce, located in Alexandria, Virginia in the judicial district 

of the Eastern District of Virginia, Alexandria Division. 

Jurisdiction and Venue 

7. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to the 

APA, 5 U.S.C. §§ 701-706, as well as 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1361, 1338(a), 2201, and 2202. 
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8. Defendant is subject to personal jurisdiction in the Commonwealth of Virginia 

because he regularly carries out business in this judicial district and division by carrying out the 

governmental duties and obligations of the PTO. In addition, Defendant has committed acts in 

violation of the APA in this judicial district and division. 

9. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § l(b), as well as 28 

U.S.C. § 1391(e) because Defendant is an officer of an agency of the United States, acting in his 

official capacity, and a substantial part of the events giving rise to this Complaint occurred in this 

judicial district and division. 

10. Komipharm has standing to maintain this action pursuant to the APA, 5 U.S.C. 

§ 702, as an entity that has suffered a legal wrong and has been adversely affected by final agency 

action, as complained of herein. 

11. As complained of herein, there exists an actual, justiciable case or controversy 

between Komipharm and the PTO as to which Komipharm requires a declaration of rights by this 

Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§2201 and 2202. 

12. Sovereign immunity preventing suits against the officers or employees of the 

United States is waived in this action pursuant to the provisions of the APA, 5 U.S.C. § 702. 

Factual Background 

13. On October 8, 2004, the '357 Application was filed in the PTO naming Dr. Sang 

Bong Lee ("Dr. Lee") and Mr. Yong Jin Yang ("Mr. Yang") as the inventive entity. The '357 

Application is currently pending. 

14. On or about August 11, 2005, Dr. Lee and Mr. Yang each executed an assignment, 

in full compliance with 35 U.S.C. § 261, each transferring his entire right, title, and interest in the 

'357 Application to Komipharm (the "Assignment"). Komipharm filed the Assignment at the 
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PTO on August 17, 2005. The PTO recorded the Assignment at reel 016661 and frame 0653 on 

August 23, 2005. 

15. On or about November 15, 2005, Komipharm submitted a corrected cover sheet to 

correctly associate the Assignment with the '357 Application. The PTO recorded this corrected 

cover sheet at reel 019585 and frame 0319 on July 20,2007. 

16. On November 9, 2007, Komipharm filed a Petition to amend inventorship (a 

tangentially related issue) of the '357 Application under 37 C.F.R. 1.48(a) ("Petition on 

Inventorship"). This petition is relevant to this action because of the PTO's erroneous reason for 

disposing of it. 

17. Subsequently, the PTO dismissed Komipharm's Petition on Inventorship on 

September 17, 2008. In that decision, in connection with recognition of McDermott Will & 

Emery LLP as Komipharm's attorney, the PTO failed to give full legal force and effect to the 

Assignment. 

18. On or about October 23, 2008, Komipharm filed an amended version of the 

Assignment, correcting the application number (the "Corrected Assignment"). The PTO recorded 

the Corrected Assignment at reel 021728 and frame 0253 on October 23, 2008. 

19. On November 17, 2008, Komipharm filed a Request for Reconsideration of its 

Petition on Inventorship. In its Request for Reconsideration, Komipharm noted, inter alia, that it 

is the owner of the entire right, title, and interest in the '357 Application, by virtue of the 

Assignment and Corrected Assignment. 

20. In response, on March 5, 2009 the Petitions Examiner mailed a Decision on 

Petitions ("First PTO Decision," Exhibit A), finding that notwithstanding his assignment of his 

entire right, title, and interest, Mr. Lee retained rights in the '357 Application. The Petitions 
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Examiner failed to recognize the effect of the Assignment and Corrected Assignment, concluding 

that Komipharm is not the owner of the entire right, title, and interest in the '357 Application. The 

Petitions Examiner erroneously asserted that there was no evidence establishing that Dr. Lee 

transferred his entire right, title, and interest in the '357 Application to Komipharm, despite the 

Assignment and Corrected Assignment. In so doing, the Petitions Examiner ignored the 

substantive transfer of a valid United States Assignment and Corrected Assignment, and instead 

relied on a translation of a non-controlling earlier dated Korean letter agreement between 

Komipharm, Dr. Yang, and Mr. Lee; an agreement subject to the laws of Korea. 

21. On April 6,2009, Komipharm filed a Petition to Invoke Supervisory Authority 

under 37 C.F.R. 1.181(a)(3) ("April 6, 2009 Petition"), asking, among other things, that the 

Director reverse the finding of the First PTO Decision regarding ownership of the '357 

Application, and to designate the First PTO Decision a final agency decision for purposes of 

appealing the decision under the APA to United States District Court. In the April 6, 2009 

Petition, Komipharm again noted that it is the owner of the entire right, title, and interest in the 

'357 Application, in view of the Assignment and Corrected Assignment. 

22. In response, on October 27,2009 the Director of the Office of Petitions mailed a 

second Decision on Petitions ("Second PTO Decision," Exhibit B), which affirmed the finding of 

the First PTO Decision that Komipharm is not the owner of the entire right, title, and interest in 

the '357 Application. Again, the PTO refused to recognize the clear and unequivocal United 

States Assignment and Corrected Assignment, instead focusing its analysis on the non-controlling 

foreign letter agreement between Komipharm, Dr. Yang, and Mr. Lee, dismissing the substance, 

import, and legal effect of the clear and unequivocal United States assignment on the basis that the 

act of recordation is "ministerial." 
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23. As set forth in footnote 1 of the Second PTO Decision, that decision is a final 

agency action within the meaning of the APA, 5 U.S.C. § 704, for purposes of obtaining judicial 

review. 

24. On June 3, 2009, while the April 6, 2009 Petition was pending, the PTO issued an 

Office Action in the '357 Application. The six month non-extendable statutory date for response 

to that Office Action is set to expire on December 3, 2009. If no response is filed by that date, the 

'357 Application will become abandoned. As a result of the Second PTO Decision, Komipharm 

and its counsel cannot prosecute the '357 Application without the consent and cooperation of Dr. 

Lee. On November 17, 2009, Komipharm, through its Korean counsel, contacted Korean counsel 

for Dr. Lee, requesting his cooperation in the prosecution of the '357 Application. In response, on 

November 19,2009, Dr. Lee's counsel informed Komipharm that Dr. Lee refuses to cooperate 

with Komipharm to file a joint response in the '357 Application, even with knowledge that such 

refusal will result in the abandonment of the '357 Application. Thus, as a consequence of the First 

and Second PTO Decisions, and because the PTO issued an Office Action that triggered a 

statutory time period for response while the April 6,2009 Petition was pending, without the 

cooperation of Dr. Lee the '357 Application stands to go abandoned on December 3, 2009. 

25. Abandonment of the '357 Application will cause irreparable harm to Komipharm. 

26. On or about August 21, 2008, Dr. Lee filed United States Application No. 

12/229,264. Dr. Lee alleged that this application was a continuation-in-part of the '357 

Application, and further falsely alleged on the cover sheet of the application that the '357 

Application was abandoned. In fact, the '357 Application was not abandoned at this time, and Dr. 

Lee had improperly designated the filing as a continuation-in-part of the '357 Application. 
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Count I 

(Declaratory Relief) 

27. Komipharm repeats and realleges the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 

26 of its Complaint and further alleges as follows: 

28. Pursuant to the APA, 5 U.S.C. § 703, this Court may take any form of applicable 

legal action in this matter, including but not limited to issuing declaratory judgments and 

mandatory injunctions. 

29. Pursuant to the APA, 5 U.S.C. § 706, this Court may hold unlawful and set aside 

agency actions, findings, and conclusions found to be arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, 

or otherwise not in accordance with the law and in excess of statutory authority. 

30. Together, the Assignment and the Corrected Assignment constitute a valid transfer 

of ownership to Komipharm of the entire right, title, and interest in the '357 Application, under 35 

U.S.C. §261. 

31. The PTO's failure to recognize the legal force and effect of the Assignment and 

Corrected Assignment and resulting decision that Komipharm is not the owner of the entire right, 

title, and interest in the '357 Application was arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, or 

otherwise not in accordance with the law and in excess of statutory authority, all in violation of the 

APA, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2). 

32. The PTO's decision disregarding the clear and unequivocal transfer of ownership 

by the Assignment and Corrected Assignment and finding that Komipharm is not presently the 

sole owner of the entire right, title, and interest in the '357 Application has damaged Komipharm, 

in part because Komipharm has been denied its exclusive and sole right to prosecute the '357 

Application. Such damage will continue and become irreparable unless and until the PTO 

decision regarding ownership is set aside and Komipharm is held to be the sole owner of the entire 

-7-

Case 1:09-cv-01332-LO-TRJ     Document 1      Filed 11/30/2009     Page 7 of 10



right, title, and interest in the '357 Application, pursuant to the Assignment and Corrected 

Assignment. 

33 Komipharm has exhausted its administrative remedies and the Second PTO 

Decision is final. 

34. Komipharm has no adequate remedy at law. 

35. The PTO's decisions regarding the Assignment and Corrected Assignment and 

ownership of the '357 Application are ripe for review because the issues tendered are appropriate 

for legal resolution and Komipharm will suffer irreparable injury if relief is denied. 

Count II 

(Immediate Preliminary Relief Pending Review) 

36. Komipharm repeats and realleges the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 

35 of its Complaint and further alleges as follows: 

37. Pursuant to the APA, 5 U.S.C. § 705, this Court may issue all necessary and 

appropriate process to postpone the effective date of an agency action or to preserve status or 

rights pending conclusion of the review proceedings, if so doing is necessary to prevent 

irreparable injury. 

38. In view of the First and Second PTO Decisions finding that Komipharm is not the 

owner of the entire right, title, and interest in the '357 Application, and in view of the fact that Dr. 

Lee has refused to cooperate in the prosecution of the '357 Application, the '357 Application 

stands to go abandoned on December 3, 2009. The abandonment of the '357 Application would 

irreparably injure Komipharm. 

39. On November 11, 2009, Komipharm filed an Emergency Petition for Suspension of 

Action by the Office under 37 C.F.R. § 1.103(a) at the PTO seeking to have the PTO suspend 

action in the '357 Application, or, in the alternative, withdraw the improvidently issued June 3, 
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2009 Office Action, pending review by this Court. At the time of this filing, the PTO has not 

responded to this emergency petition. 

40. Komipharm is likely to prevail on the merits in this matter because the Assignment 

and Corrected Assignment constitute a valid transfer to Komipharm of the entire right, title, and 

interest in the '357 Application. 

41. Postponing activity in the '357 Application pending final review of this matter by 

this Court will not harm the public interest, nor the interests of any party related to this matter. 

42. Thus, this Court may issue an order suspending activity in the '357 Application, 

preserving the status quo and respective rights pending the conclusion of these review 

proceedings. 

Prayer for Relief 

WHEREFORE, Komipharm respectfully requests that this Court enter judgment for 

Komipharm and against Defendant as follows: 

(a) issue an immediate emergency preliminary order pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 705 

compelling the PTO to suspend all action on the '357 Application or, in the alternative, to 

withdraw the June 3, 2009 Office Action, until this Court rules in this matter; 

(b) rule that the PTO's findings in the First and Second PTO Decisions that Komipharm is 

not the owner of the entire right, title, and interest in the '357 Application were arbitrary, 

capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise contrary to law and in excess of statutory 

authority, all in violation of 5 U.S.C. § 706(2), and thus must be set aside; 

(c) issue a declaratory judgment that the Assignment and Corrected Assignment constitute 

a valid transfer to Komipharm of the entire right, title, and interest in the '357 Application; 
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(d) issue a declaratory judgment that Komipharm is the owner of the entire right, title, and 

interest in the '357 Application; and 

(e) afford such other and further relief that this Court deems appropriate. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Dated: November 30, 2009 

Of Counsel: 

Paul Devinsky 

McDermott Will & Emery LLP 

600 Thirteenth Street, N.W. 

Washington, D.C. 20005-3096 

chawkins@m we. com 

Telephone: 

Facsimile: 

202 756 8000 

202 756 8087 

/Robert J. Walters'' 
/'Virginia Bar(N/ 47952 
Charles J. Hawkins 

Virginia Bar No. 65531 

MCDERMOTT WILL & EMERY LLP 

600 Thirteenth Street, N.W. 

Washington, D.C. 20005-3096 

chawkins@mwe. com 

Telephone: 202 756 8000 

Facsimile: 202 756 8087 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 

KOMIPHARM INTERNATIONAL CO., 

LTD. 
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